
Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 7, 2013 

6:00 pm 
Chowan County Public Safety Center 

305 West Freemason Street 
 

Minutes 
 
The Chowan County Board of Commissioners held their regular meeting on Monday, October 7, 
2013 at 6:00 pm at the Chowan County Public Safety Center. Present: Chairman Keith Nixon, 
Commissioners Jeff Smith, Greg Bonner, Ellis Lawrence, Emmett Winborne, Alex Kehayes and 
John Mitchener. 
 
Staff present: County Manager Zee Lamb, Finance Officer Willie Mack Carawan and Board 
Clerk Susanne Stallings. 
 
Chairman Nixon called the meeting to order and led the pledge. 
 
Commissioner Kehayes then provided the invocation. 
 
Approval of Agenda 

Commissioner Mitchener moved to approve the agenda. Chairman Nixon asked for all in favor, 
the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

Public Comment 

Tom Creedle, 137 Osprey Drive provided the Board with a PowerPoint and petition by adjoining 
property owners to rezone Phase II of the Riversound Development back to A-1 Agricultural. A 
copy of the PowerPoint and petition is in the meeting file labeled October 7, 2013.  

After the presentation, Chairman Nixon requested that the Board refer the discussion to the 
Planner, County Attorney and Manager to advise the Board on how the Board should proceed 
with the request. 

Shelia Tuttle, Vice President of the Friends of the Library invited the Commissioners to an event 
at the Library. 

There was no further public comment. 

Consent Agenda 

Chairman Nixon asked for any additions or corrections to the minutes of the August 20, 2013, 
September 3, 2013 and September 17, 2013 minutes. 



Commissioner Kehayes moved to approve the minutes as presented. Chairman Nixon asked for 
all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

Budget Amendments 

BA 1314-019 

 

Account Code Description Old + or (-) New 

62-3471-530-00 Scrap Tire Grant -17500.00         (1,925.00)       (19,425.00) 

62-4710-694-00 Scrap Tire Grant 17500.00          1,925.00         19,425.00  

          

          

    0.00 0.00 0.00 

     

Justification:     

      

 Budgeting additional Scrap Tire Revenues received 

 

  

BA1314-020 

Account Code Description Old + or (-) New 

73-3414-110-00 Town of Edenton Tax Collection 
 
(1,500,000.00)   1,500,000.00                      -    

73-3414-120-00 Town of Edenton Land Transfer       (80,000.00)        80,000.00                      -    

73-3414-160-00 Tax Refunds         (2,000.00)          2,000.00                      -    

73-4140-499-00 Tax Overpayment Refunds          2,000.00          (2,000.00)                     -    



73-4140-601-00 Town of Edenton Tax Collection   1,500,000.00  
 

(1,500,000.00)                     -    

73-4140-602-00 Town of Edenton Land Transfer        80,000.00        (80,000.00)                     -    

Town of Edenton 

75-3100-180-00 HB 1779 - Motor Vehicle Interest         (7,500.00)          7,500.00                      -    

75-4140-630-00 HB 1779 - Motor Vehicle Interest          7,500.00          (7,500.00)                     -    

HB 1779 - Motor Vehicle Interest 

     $                 -     $                 -     $                 -    

     

Justification:     

      

 Per the Auditor, these are Activity Funds and like the Drainage District Fund, no budget is needed. 

BA 1314-022 

Account Code Description Old + or (-) New 

49-3591-234-00  Lottery Proceeds                     -          (30,048.08)       (30,048.08  

49-5913-014-03  CMS - Student Bathrooms                     -           22,265.52         22,265.5   

49-5913-014-04  CMS - CTS Instruction Program                     -             7,782.56           7,782.5   

School Capital Outlay - Lottery Proceeds    

  Balanced:  $                 -     $                 -     $                     

      

Justification:     

      

 Budgeting Lottery Proceeds for the Chowan Middle School Student Bathrooms and CTS 
Instruction Program projects  

      

 



BA 1314-023 

 

 

BA 1314-025 

Account Code Description Old + or (-) New 

11-3616-537-00 Albemarle Comm - Hlth Promotion                     -               (474.00)            (474.00) 

11-4268-601-00 Sr. Center - Hlth Promotion                     -                474.00              474.00  

          

          

          

          

  

  Balanced:  $                 -     $                 -     $                 -    

     

Justification:     

      

 

 



Board Clerk, Susanne Stallings noted the amendment of the Budget numbering of 20, 21 and 22. 

The Board discussed the amendments. The Capital Project budget for Maintenance (BA-1314-
023) was discussed. Mr. Lamb asked if this amendment could be pulled and referred to the 
worksession in order to determine what funds remain in the Courthouse capital line and general 
Maintenance budgets. The Board reviewed quotes obtained from the Maintenance Director for 
repairs to the Jailers House. 

Commissioner Smith moved to approve all budget amendments excluding BA-1314-023. 
Chairman Nixon asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously. (7-0) 

Commissioner Smith moved to give the authority to the Finance Officer and Manager to move 
$2,911 from the remaining DSS Capital Improvement Budget to the Jailers House. 

Chairman Nixon asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0) (This amendment is 
included in BA-1314-023 a copy of the budget amendment, which includes motions from 
October 7, 2013 and October 22, 2013 is in the meeting file labeled October 7, 2013). 

Tax Release 

a. Tax Release 
August Release 

Powell, J.  $117.47 Vehicle Sold 
Lawrence, R.  $203.54 Paid by Service Link 
Skinners P.  $1,043.70 SITUS Dare Co. 
Brougham, R.  $140.96 Vehicle Sold 
Tolbert, M.  $183.75 Senior Exemption 
Partin, W.  $183.75 Senior Exemption 
Perry, B.  $272.10 Senior Exemption 
Bass, E.   $201.24 Senior Exemption 
Bembry, A.  $284.56 Senior Exemption 
Byrum, V.  $2,542.82 Senior Exemption 
Edenton L.  $441.00 Exempt parcel 
Boys and G.  $3,300.44 Exempt parcel 
Virginia E.  $390.00 Exempt parcel 
Trustees J.  $1,811.53 Exempt parcel 
Dillard, D.  $361.43 Senior Exemption 
Edenton B.  $147.00 Exempt parcel 
Edenton B.  $1,970.21 Exempt parcel 
Sandy P.  $681.72 Exempt parcel 
Hall, T.   $234.29 Senior Exemption 
Holley, R.  $405.71 Senior Exemption 
Misc.Churches  $9,155.22 Exempt parcels 
Chowan  $8,444.52 Exempt parcels 
Hurdle, E.  $269.75 Senior Exemption 
Lane, W.  $183.83 Senior Exemption 



McGuire, T.  $330.75 Veteran Exemption 
Ryan, M.  $435.75 Veteran exemption 
Lacy, R.   $340.57 Senior Exemption 
Williams, T.  $330.75 Veteran Exemption 
EIC   $20,764.50 Exempt Parcel 
Carefusion  $191.13 Mailed prior to Jan 31st 
Leary, J.   $266.36 Senior Exemption 
GE Equip  $106.30 Billed twice 
Thomas, C.  $374.56 Moved to another account 
Nixon, J.  $183.75 Senior Exemption 
 
September Release 
Croughenour, B. $169.71 paid twice 
Ward, B.  $134.34 Sold 
Bonner, J.  $716.59 Paid twice 
Simpson S.  $4,386.59 Penalty waived by BOC 
Kernoodle, R.  $446.45 SITUS Washington Co. 
Edmundson, L.  $184.10 Does not own the vehicle 
Harriss. W.  $242.16 Senior exemption 
Castelow, B.  $103.68 Vehicle totaled 
 

Commissioner Winborne asked for clarification on the exempt releases. 

Mr. Wilson clarified that these are the result of being coded incorrectly and the parcels are 
exempt. 

Commissioner Mitchener moved to approve the tax releases and refunds as presented. Chairman 
Nixon asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

Golden Leaf Community Initiative 

Mr. Lamb noted that the Board has been asked to support two different proposals for the FY 
2014 Golden Leaf Community Initiative.  He stated one proposal is from COA/Edenton-Chowan 
Schools and Chowan County and a proposal from Pasquotank County. 

Frank Miglorie, Director of the Edenton Chowan Partnership (ECP) provided information on the 
joint proposal from COA/Edenton-Chowan Schools and Chowan County. He stated the purpose 
of the plan is to revitalize a high risk neighborhood to promote economic vitality. He stated the 
proposal is to renovate the former DF Walker Building on the COA campus. He stated that 
Edenton-Chowan Schools currently has funding from Golden Leaf for a STEM program.  He 
stated presently COA provides vocational programs and this proposal would take the existing 
facilities and programs in place to create the STEM program into an associate’s degree program. 
He stated that by renovating the DF Walker Building would allow the college to expand its 
programs and offer a world class community college, not only to the neighborhood but Chowan 
County and surrounding areas.  He stated the location of the community college makes it more 



accessible to high risk students which increases the likelihood of them participating in the 
programs and furthering their education.  He stated that programs for local employers such as 
food processing, manufacturing and technology skills would provide a more educated workforce 
and could possibly include transportation and logistical training.  He stated this application is just 
the first step in what could be a series of applications for the Golden Leaf 2014 grant.  He 
requested that the Board support this application. 

The Board discussed the future location for the Edenton Police Department. 

Town Manager Anne-Marie Knighton stated that all options are being evaluated and no 
definitive site has been chosen. 

Mr. Miglorie noted that the Employment Security Commission is looking into the site as a future 
location. He stated that support from neighboring counties will be requested. He stated that a 
requirement of the grant is to provide a 20% match and the annual contribution of $200,000 
currently budgeted for COA could be considered as part of the match.  

Chairman Nixon noted that the project could be considered over multiple years. 

Commissioner Winborne asked if other entities support the project. 

Mr. Miglorie stated that the Town Council, School System, COA and ECP support the project. 

Lynn Hurdle-Winslow, Dean of the Edenton Chowan COA campus stated the project has been 
endorsed by the college. 

Mr. Miglorie stated the President of the college has supported the rehabilitation of the building 
and has stated that program development will take some time, however this building would 
provide a venue to offer specialized courses. 

Mr. Lamb stated that Pasquotank County has requested support of a STEM aerospace project 
which is requesting $200,000 from each county of the Golden Leaf grant.  

Commissioner Smith moved to support the application (RFI) “request for intent” for the project 
from Chowan County on behalf of COA and Edenton Chowan Schools for the total amount 
eligible of $1.5 million. 

Chairman Nixon asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

Appointments 

Jury Commission 

Chairman Nixon asked for any nominations for the Jury Commission vacancy. 



Commissioner Lawrence nominated Denise Bunch. Chairman Nixon called for any further 
nominations, there were none.  Chairman Nixon asked for all in favor of the nomination, the 
motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

Airport Commission  

Commissioner Smith nominated Robert Clarke. Chairman Nixon called for any further 
nominations, there were none.  Chairman Nixon asked for all in favor of the nomination, the 
motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 

Commissioner Kehayes nominated Amanda Hodges. Chairman Nixon called for any further 
nominations, there were none.  Chairman Nixon asked for all in favor of the nomination, the 
motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

Town of Edenton Planning Board 

The Board requested that the Clerk advertise the vacancies. 

Worksession Items 

Tax Items 

Tax Administrator Hosea Wilson provided the Board with two contract quotes for the Business 
Audit program.  He stated that both companies are good to work with and he has a good working 
relationship with County Tax Services and TMA.  He noted that based on new legislation with 
regards to business audits, the program must no longer be billed based on contingency fee 
auditing effective July 1, 2013.  He stated that now the company sets a fee based on the assessed 
valuation of the company that is being audited. He stated the program will cost less than in 
previous years. 

The Board discussed that there is no requirement to have a business audit program in place.  

Chairman Nixon stated he would prefer that the Tax Office begin more educational opportunities 
for small businesses to educate them on the listing process. 

Mr. Wilson stated that the program has been effective and the County can set the number of 
audits annually within the Tax Budget. 

Chairman Nixon stated he supported the contract because the audits could be stopped at any 
time. 

Commissioner Mitchener recommended that the Tax Administrator reach out to the Chamber 
and offer seminars for local businesses on tax listing. 



Commissioner Smith moved to approve the contract with County Tax Services. Chairman Nixon 
asked for all in favor, the motion passed (6-1 Winborne). 

Revaluation Update 

Mr. Wilson provided the Board with a PowerPoint update on the 2015 Revaluation. A copy of 
the PowerPoint is in the meeting file labeled October 7, 2013. 

Beaver Management Program 

Commissioner Smith stated he has researched the need for this program and at this time does not 
feel it is warranted for the County to participate. He stated he felt the focus should be on Hydrilla 
and the clear and snag program. 

No motion was made on the contract. 

External Board and Committee Report 

Chairman Nixon called for any external Board and Committee reports. 

Commissioner Smith noted that the Edenton Chowan Partnership Board met and reviewed a 
request for $10,000 to contribute to the Town of Edenton’s application to become a Certified 
Retirement Community. He stated the Board approved the request. 

Purple Heart Resolution 

Ms. Stallings explained that this was placed on the agenda at the request of Commissioners 
Mitchener and Winborne.  

Commissioner Winborne moved to approve the resolution as presented, Chairman Nixon asked 
for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

A PROCLAMATION IN HONOR OF THE MILITARY ORDER 
OF THE PURPLE HEART 

 

WHEREAS, the Purple Heart is the oldest military decoration still in present use and was 
initially created by George Washington in 1782, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the Purple Heart was the first American Service Award made available to the 
common soldier, and is awarded to any member of the United States Armed Services wounded 
or killed in combat with a declared enemy of the United States, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the mission of The Military Order of the Purple Heart, chartered by an act of 
Congress, is to foster an environment of goodwill among the combat-wounded veteran members 
and their families; to promote patriotism; to support related legislative initiatives; and, most 
importantly, to make sure we never forget and; 



 
WHEREAS, Chowan County is home to veterans, active duty military members and their 
families whose lives have been altered forever as a result of combat injuries and loss of life, and; 
 
WHEREAS, Chowan County, North Carolina wishes to pledge its strong support for this noble 
organization and for those who put their lives at risk in service of their Country and their fellow 
citizens. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT PROCLAIMED, that Chowan County goes on record in to 
bestow honor and gratitude upon the Military Order of the Purple Heart, and proudly supports 
the recognition of Chowan County as a “Purple Heart County in the State of North Carolina”. 
 
Approved, this 6th day of October, 2013. 

 

Timely and Important Matters 

Impact of Federal Government Shutdown on Social Services Programming 

DSS Director Clifton Hardison shared information with the Board concerning funding for certain 
programs at Social Services including childcare which would be stopped during the federal 
government shutdown. He stated that projected costs to keep the programs operating are 
estimated at $45,000 per month and impact 163 children from 104 families. He stated there are 
options for the Board to consider to maintain the services which allow him to utilize 
Maintenance of Effort (MOE) funds that are unspent. He stated that $528 would need to be 
located within the DSS budget. He stated this could only sustain the program through the end of 
October. He stated that monies for daycare, since many families who are employed may have 
trouble finding adequate daycare. 

The Board discussed the use of MOE funds and the impact on the Social Services budget.  

Chairman Nixon asked if MOE monies could be used to prevent furloughs. 

Mr. Hardison stated that the MOE monies could be used to cover the salaries of the workers. 

Chairman Nixon stated he was glad monies had been located for the month of October but 
recommended letting the clients and daycares know that funding could be lost by November 1st if 
there is no agreement reached by the federal government. 

Commissioner Bonner stated his support of the programs and encouraged the Board to allow 
DSS 30 days to continue the programs. 

The Board by consensus agreed to allow the Director to utilize MOE funds for the month of 
October with the understanding that there would be no County funds to subsidize the programs 



after October 31, 2013 if no agreement is reached by the federal government. Mr. Hardison will 
keep the manager and Board updated on the activities of DSS in the month of October. 

Southern Chowan Fire Department 

Commissioner Mitchener urged the Manager to meet with Town staff regarding a fire 
department in the southern portion of Chowan County. 

Closed Session 

Commissioner Smith moved to go into closed session in accordance with NCGS 143-318 (11) 
(a) (4,5 and 6). Chairman Nixon asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

The minutes of the closed session are sealed. 

Commissioner Winborne moved to close the closed session. Chairman Nixon asked for all in 
favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

Being no further business, Commissioner Mitchener moved that the meeting be adjourned, 
Chairman Nixon asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0) 

 

 

_______________________________________  ______________________________ 

D. Keith Nixon, Chairman     Susanne Stallings, Clerk 

 

 


	A PROCLAMATION IN HONOR OF THE MILITARY ORDER OF THE PURPLE HEART

